
Iofdiidfgi0dfgdfigdiufgdfgiogduioigijgijo 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For the meeting to be held on 

Monday, 23 March 2020 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CITY OF LINCOLN COUNCIL 
 
Sir/Madam, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the COUNCIL of the City of Lincoln to be 
held at Committee Room One on Monday, 23 March 2020 at 5.00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive and Town Clerk 
 

Angela Andrews 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

2.  Extension of Six Month Attendance Rule  
 

5 - 6 

3.  Equality Objectives 2020-2024  
 

7 - 20 

 



This page is intentionally blank.



COUNCIL 23 MARCH 2020  
  

 

 
SUBJECT:   
 

EXTENSION OF SIX MONTH ATTENDANCE RULE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND TOWN CLERK 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 
 
 

To consider a dispensation under the six month rule under the Local Government 
Act 1972 and to excuse the non-attendance of Councillors Yvonne Bodger and 
Andrew Kerry. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

Section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 states that “if a member of a 
Local Authority fails, throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date 
of their last attendance, to attend any meeting of the Authority they will, unless the 
failure was due to some good reason approved by the Authority before the expiry 
of that period, cease to be a member of the Authority.”  
 
Attendance can be at any committee or sub-committee, or any joint committee, 
joint board or other body where the functions of the Authority are discharged or 
who were appointed to advise the Authority on any matter relating to the discharge 
of their functions. This requirement can be waived and the time limit extended if 
any failure to attend was due to a reason approved by the Authority, in advance of 
the six month period expiring. 
 

2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 

Councillor Yvonne Bodger represents the Minster Ward and has not attended a 
Council meeting since 6 November 2019.  
 
Councillor Andrew Kerry represents the Hartsholme Ward and has not attended a 
Council meeting since 21 January 2020 on grounds of ill health. 
 
A decision has recently been taken to suspend meetings of the Council until 
further notice in response to the latest guidance associated with the Corona Virus. 
This means that it may not be possible for Councillor Bodger or Councillor Kerry to 
attend a meeting within their required six month period. 
 

2.6 
 

Should any member lose office through failure to attend for the six month period, 
the disqualification cannot be overcome by the member subsequently resuming 
attendance nor can retrospective approval of the Council be sought for an 
extension in time.  
 

5

Item No. 2



  
  
 
 
 
3. 

 
 
 
Recommendation  
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 

To consider approval of a dispensation for Councillor Yvonne Bodger and 
Councillor Andrew Kerry from attending meetings of the Council in order to avoid 
both Councillors potentially ceasing to be a member of the authority under Section 
85 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
Is this a key decision? 
 

No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

No 
 

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

No 
 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 

None 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None 
 
 

Lead Officer: Graham Watts, Democratic and Elections Manager 
Telephone (01522) 873439 

 

6



  
 

 

 
COUNCIL 
 

23 MARCH 2020 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
EQUALITY OBJECTIVES 2020 - 2024  
 

REPORT BY: 
 
LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND TOWN CLERK 
 
ALI HEWSON, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER 

 
1. Matter for Council 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 

To consider the proposed Draft Equality Objectives 2020-2024 for approval. 

 

 
List of Background 
Papers: 
 

Equality and Diversity Group– 18 February 2020, Minute.  

Lead Officer:  Ali Hewson, Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone – 873370 

  

7

Item No. 3



This page is intentionally blank.



            
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY GROUP 18 FEBRUARY 2020  

  

 
SUBJECT:  
 

EQUALITY OBJECTIVES 2020-24 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND TOWN CLERK  

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

HEATHER GROVER, PRINCIPAL POLICY OFFICER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 
 

To present to proposed Equality Objectives to Equality and Diversity Group for 
members to consider and comment on prior to forwarding to Executive and then Full 
Council for approval. 
 

2. Executive Summary  
 

2.1 The Equality Act 2010 is the main legislation in respect of equality and diversity, 
complemented by the Human Rights Act 1998 providing legislation protecting human 
rights. 
 

2.2 The council has specific duties under the Act which include the annual publication of 
equality information and setting at least one measurable Equality Objective every four 
years.   
 

2.3 This report covers the setting of Equality Objectives. It provides a brief summary of the 
council’s current Equality Objectives and associated actions over the four years from 
2016-20 and presents proposed Equality Objectives for the forthcoming four years 
from 2020-2024.   
 

2.4 The report includes details of the process undertaken to review the council’s Equality 
Objectives, which resulted in the proposal that the strategic objectives remain in place 
for a further four years, with an underpinning annual action plan to ensure measurable 
progress. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 
 

The Equality Act 2010 is the main legislation in respect of equality and diversity, 
complemented by the Human Rights Act 1998 providing legislation protecting human 
rights. 
 

3.2 The Act makes it unlawful to discriminate against people on the following grounds 
(protected characteristics): 

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

9



 Religion and belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 

 
3.3 
 

Section 149 of the Act imposes a general equality duty (Public Sector Equality Duty) 
on public bodies. Public authorities and those who exercise public functions must have 
‘due regard’ to the need to:  
 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

 
3.4 Schedule 19 of the Equality Act places further specific duties on public bodies. Listed 

public authorities must publish: 
  

 Information on employees (if 150 staff or more) and people affected by policies 
and practices to demonstrate compliance with the equality duty, at least 
annually  

 Specific and measurable equality objectives, at least every four years  
 

3.5 
 

Information on employees and people affected by policies and practices to 
demonstrate compliance with the equality duty 
 

3.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5.2 

This information is provided in the Equality Journal. The Journal is published annually 
and provides information on the local authority area, the council’s workforce and 
activity which has taken place in respect of equality and diversity over the preceding 
financial year. It is published in September in order to include nationally released data 
for the area for the period covered. 
 
The annual Equality Journal is considered by Equality and Diversity Group prior to 
publication. The Equality Journal 2018/19 can be found on our website on the Equality 
and Diversity page. 
 

3.6 Specific and measurable equality objectives  
 

3.6.1 The council is required to set at least one specific and measurable equality objective 
every four years. It last published equality objectives in 2016 for the four years to 2020.  
There were five objectives measured through a detailed annual action plan.   
 

3.6.2 This report provides a summary of progress against these objectives and includes a 
summary of progress made against the Equality Objectives 2016-20. 
 

4. Equality Objectives 2016-20 
 

4.1 The following objectives were set in 2016: 
 

 Our services are more accessible and do not discriminate on any unjustifiable 
grounds. 

10

https://www.lincoln.gov.uk/policies-publications/equality-diversity-1/4?documentId=372&categoryId=78


 Local communities and stakeholders are empowered to influence the way our 
services are provided to them. 

 Equality and diversity is at the heart of decision making at all levels within the 
city council. 

 Our workforce at all levels reflects the makeup of the local community. 

 Equalities, Social Inclusion and Community Cohesion have all improved within 
our communities. 

 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4.3 

The action plan has been monitored on a regular basis by the Equality and Diversity 
Group, with new actions being added as identified. Over the period 2016-20 the plan 
has included 113 actions, and these have been achieved as follows: 
 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 (to date) 

Complete 27 10 14 8 

Ongoing 11 10 13 15 

Removed 4 0 0 1 

TOTAL 42 20 27 24 

 
Only key equality actions in any one year are included in the annual action plan.  
Therefore some, but not all, ongoing actions are carried forward to the following year.   
Those actions which have been removed either became redundant due to changes in 
procedures or on investigation were found to be impractical to implement. 

  
4.4 Actions have been wide ranging with some key examples being: 

 

 Forum to enable people with disabilities to have a say about the council’s 
services and establishment of Housing Disability Group 

 Staff training and awareness raising on a wide range of topics, e.g. autism, 
dementia, deaf awareness and sign language 

 Review of the Corporate Monitoring form 

 Introduction of a tailored Equality Analysis Form for Tenancy Services  

 Installation of a ‘changing places’ toilet at the new bus station and introduction 
of these toilets at Lincoln Christmas Market 

 Hosting of a coffee morning to celebrate 100 years of the vote for women 

 Support for the Muslim community ensuring the building and opening of the 
city’s first purpose-built mosque went smoothly 

 Celebration of World Hello Day each year to bring people together 

 Disability Confident Employer and Mindful Employer status 
 
Further information can be found in the annual Equality Journal, which not only 
provides equality information but also provides a summary of equality work undertaken 
during the year.  
 

5. Developing Equality Objectives 2020-24  
 

5.1 The City of Lincoln Council must set equality objectives in April 2020 for the four year 
period 2020-24, and these must be specific and measurable.   
 

5.2 
 
 

The current objectives provided a starting point for developing new objectives to take 
the council forward to 2024.   
 

11

https://www.lincoln.gov.uk/policies-publications/equality-diversity-1/4?documentId=372&categoryId=78


5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The process for developing equality objectives for this period began in December 2019 
with a discussion at the Equality and Diversity group and at a joint meeting of the 
Corporate Leadership Team and Service Managers. In January consultation took 
place with staff, voluntary sector groups, elected members, trade unions, the Tenants 
Panel and members of the public. The following tables provides further details.  
 

Group being consulted with Date 

E&D Group consider current objectives and proposals for 
equality objectives for 2020-2024. 

December 

Corporate Leadership Team and Service Managers December 

Elected Members (via letter from E&D Chair) January 

Staff (online via City People) January 

Trade unions (advised of consultation and invited to 
participate online at meeting)  

January 

Tenants Panel (advised of consultation and invited to 
participate online at meeting) 

January 

Voluntary Sector (Voluntary Centre Services newsletter) January 

Citizens Panel questionnaire (paper and online survey) January 

CMT (for comment following consultation) February 

E&D Group (for approval ahead of Executive) 18/2/19 

Executive (for approval ahead of Full Council) 24/2/20 

New objectives agreed by Full Council to run from 1/4/20 25/2/20  
 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 A short survey was included as part of the January Citizens Panel questionnaire, 
circulated as both an online and paper survey. We also ran a dedicated equality 
objectives online survey for staff, elected members, trade unions, the Tenants Panel 
and the voluntary sector.  

  
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The views of senior staff and service managers were sought face to face, staff were 
invited to participate in the survey through our intranet, elected members were invited 
to participate through a letter from the member Chair of the Equality and Diversity 
Group and trade unions and Tenants Panel representatives informed of the survey at 
their regular meetings. A link to the survey was circulated, via the Voluntary Sector 
Services newsletter, to all voluntary sector organisations in and serving the city.   
 
The results of the consultation are provided for the Citizens Panel at Appendix A and 
for all other consultees at Appendix B.  
 
All those consulted were asked the same questions, and in respect of our current 
objectives were asked how well we had achieved each objective. Citizens Panel 
members are not as familiar with the objectives and action plans and therefore, as 
expected, returned a higher percentage of ‘don’t knows’. Positively, other consultees 
with more knowledge of our work to support equality and diversity returned high 
percentages of us having ‘partly achieved’ or ‘fully achieved’ objectives. For objectives 
1, 2 and 3 this figure was 85%, and for objective 5, 75%. Objective 4, ‘our workforce 
reflects the make-up of the local community’ was the lowest at 55%. 

12



 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 

 
We also asked which objectives were most important for the coming four years.   
Making our services accessible and non-discriminatory was identified by Citizens 
Panel respondents as being most important, followed by ensuring equality and 
diversity is at the heart of decision making. For other respondents they also identified 
making our services accessible and non-discriminatory as most important, with 
empowering local communities, partner organisations stakeholders in service delivery 
as second most important. 
 
A further question asked about whether people had been discriminated against. We 
also asked for general comments on the objectives. Not all comments referred to a 
specific protected characteristic, but of those that did they can be summarised as 
follows: 
 

 Age – 10 comments 

 Disability – 8 comments 

 Race – 7 comments 

 Religion – 1 comment 

 Sex – 5 comments 

 Pregnancy and maternity – 1 comment 

 Marriage and civil partnership – 1 comment 

 Sexual orientation – 1 comment 
 
Two comments referred to the objectives, questioning how we measure objectives and 
quantify success and also the time taken to achieve the objectives.  Progress towards 
the objectives are measured through achievement of specific actions within the 
equality action plans.  Because of the nature of what we are working to achieve we will 
always strive to do more, and will continuously review our policies, practices and 
procedures to ensure our services continue to be delivered in a fair and non-
discriminatory way. The equality action plans are refreshed annually and enable us to 
consider comments made or issues raised which arise from engagement. 
 
Following adoption of the 2020-24 objectives we will engage with key stakeholders as 
part of developing the action plan.  This will help to identify any specific concerns 
which may need to be considered as part of our planned equality actions. 
 

7. Proposals for Equality Objectives 2020-24 and Associated Annual Action Plan 
for 2020-21 
 

7.1 Taking into consideration feedback from the consultation it is proposed that the 
Equality Objectives for the four years from 2020-24 remain broadly the same. The 
consultation indicated we had achieved these objectives over the 2016-20 period and 
this demonstrates they provide a good framework for developing new smart actions 
below each of these overarching objectives, thus enabling us to continue to measure 
progress. The proposed objectives are as follows: 
 

1. Our services are accessible and do not discriminate on any unjustifiable 
grounds. 

2. Local communities, partner organisations and stakeholders are empowered to 
influence the way our services are provided to them. 

3. Equality and diversity is at the heart of decision making at all levels within the 
city council. 

13



4. Our workforce at all levels reflects the make-up of the local community. 
5. Equalities, Social Inclusion and Community Cohesion have all improved within 

our communities. 
  

7.2 
 
 
 
 
8. 

Our new strategic plan, Vision 2025, sets out our priorities and aspirations. The annual 
equality action plans will be developed through service plans, which will focus on 
delivery of Vision 2025, thus ensuring equality actions are closely aligned to our 
priorities and aspirations.  
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

8.1 The Equality Objectives contribute to all strategic priorities, helping to make Lincoln a 
fairer and more inclusive and cohesive city. 
 

9. Organisational Impacts  
 

9.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
 
Setting the Equality Objectives has no financial implications. There will be cost 
implications for some elements of the action plan, but these will be costed and 
prioritised as part of implementation of individual projects within service areas 
 

9.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules 
 
The setting of measurable Equality Objectives is a legal requirement.  Measurement of 
the objectives will be through achievement of the action plan.  

  
9.3 Human Resources 

 
Ensuring staff receive appropriate training to enable compliance with equality 
legislation. 
 

9.4 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights (including the outcome of the EA attached, if 
required)  
 
As legal implications.  
 

9.5 Significant Community Impact 
 
The implications for the community will be beneficial, particularly in helping foster good 
relations. 
 

10. Risk Implications 
 

10.1 The risk of not adopting equality objectives is potential challenge for not complying 
with legislation.  

  
11. Recommendation  

 
11.1 
 

That Equality and Diversity Group agree the proposed draft equality objectives set out 
in Paragraph 7.1 for a four year period from April 2020 to March 2024, and refer to, 
Executive and full Council for adoption. 

14



 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
 

 No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

 No 
 

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

 No 
 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 

Two 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None 
 

Lead Officer: Heather Grover, Principal Policy Officer 
Telephone (01522) 873326 

 
 

15



This page is intentionally blank.



EXTRACT FROM COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

Equality and Diversity Group 18 February 2020 
  

53.  Equality Objectives 2020-24  
 

The Principal Policy Officer: 
 

a. presented a report to Equality and Diversity Group outlining the proposed 
Equality Objectives 2020-24 for members’ consideration and comments 
prior to forwarding to Executive and Full Council for approval 

 
b. reminded members of the Council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010 

and Human Rights Act 1998, which included the annual publication of 
equality information and setting at least one measurable Equality Objective 
every four years 

 
c. highlighted that the Equality Objectives Action Plan had been monitored on 

a regular basis by the Equality and Diversity Group with actions being 
added and amended as necessary, over the 2016 – 2020 period the 
following progress had been made: 

 

 59 Actions had been completed. 

 49 Actions had been started and were ongoing. 

 5 Actions had been removed. 
 

d. reported that only key actions in any one year were included in the annual 
action plan, therefore, some but not all ongoing actions were carried 
forward to the following year and those actions which had been removed 
either became redundant due to changes in procedures or due to 
investigation were found to be impractical to implement 

 
e. advised on a wide range of actions that had been completed over the four 

year period, as detailed at paragraph 4.4 of the report, further information 
was available in the annual Equality Journal which provided equality 
information and also a summary of equality work undertaken during the 
year 

 
f. drew members attention to paragraph 5.3 of the report detailing the 

development timetable for the 2020-2024 Equality Objectives 
 

g. advised that following feedback from members, staff, residents, tenant 
panels and the Third Sector, the Equality Objectives would remain broadly 
the same, to read as follows: 

 
1. Our services are accessible and do not discriminate on any 

unjustifiable grounds. 
2. Local communities, partner organisations and stakeholders are 

empowered to influence the way our services are provided to them. 
3. Equality and diversity is at the heart of decision making at all levels 

within the city council. 
4. Our workforce at all levels reflects the makeup of the local 

community. 

17



5. Equalities, Social Inclusion and Community Cohesion have all 
improved within our communities. 

 
h. provided a general summary of comments received from the consultation 

process outlined at Appendices A and B of the report 
 

i. highlighted that the annual equality action plans would be developed 
through service plans, focussed on delivery of our new strategic plan 
Vision 2025, thus ensuring equality actions were closely aligned to our 
priorities and aspirations 
 

j. invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members commented and received relevant responses as follows. 
 

 Comment: If a staff perception existed that employees were appointed to 
posts due to protected characteristics, it needed to be made clear this was 
not the case. This could lead to a particular person appointed being 
discriminated against due to this false perception. 

 

 Response: The council would be acting unlawfully if it recruited staff in 
this way. The best person for the job was appointed to vacant posts. 
 

 Response: A communication to all staff would emphasise that equality 
and diversity was practised at all times, however, this did not mean that 
certain applicants would be appointed to a particular post due to a 
protected characteristic. Our priority was at all times to operate a level 
playing field. 
 

 Comment: Many people feeding back into the consultation questionnaire 
were not aware of the Equality Objectives. 
 

 Response: The comments were received as anonymous. 
 

 Response: The responses to the questionnaire had been reviewed by 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) and as a result it was agreed that a 
working group be set up to review the responses to the questionnaire 
including the comments received and to agree appropriate actions moving 
forward, including discussion with the Chair of Equality and Diversity 
Group. Awareness training would also be included. 
 

 Comment: There had been limited response from the voluntary sector. 
 

 Response: There had only been one response from the voluntary sector. 
Officers had offered a separate presentation to ask for further feedback. 
 

 Comment: It was disappointing to see only 21 staff responses to the 
equality objectives consultation exercise. 
 

 Response: Agreed. Sometimes people only responded to questionnaires 
if they had an issue or it could be that staff were not made sufficiently 
aware of the questionnaire. The Working Group would discuss this and 
identify how we could improve the response rate for the future.  
 

18



 Comment: Perhaps the Citizens Panel needed greater youth 
representation on it. 
 

 Response: The Citizens Panel was reviewed from time to time to ensure it 
was age balanced, however we could not dictate who chose to respond to 
questionnaires which tended to be older people. The issue was how to 
communicate most effectively in a manner to seek the views of both young 
and older members.  
 

 Question: Was there a better way of communicating with staff other than 
by e mail? 
 

 Response: City People was used to reach staff employees. Officers would 
look at consulting in a more meaningful way wherever possible 
 

 Comment by Chair: There was a lack of engagement in Equality and 
Diversity across work forces in general, not just within this organisation. 
Consultation was the key to making an employee feel valued. Training and 
engagement was important to break down barriers to level up the playing 
field. 
 

 Response: HR were in the process of conducting training sessions to staff 
at management level to be delivered by the end of March 2020. There was 
a dedicated focus on recruitment/selection at these workshops. Manager 
briefings had also been introduced.  

 
RESOLVED that: 

 
1. The proposed Draft Equality Objectives as set out in Paragraph 7.1 of the 

report for a four year period from April 2020 to March 2024 be forwarded to 
Executive for consideration and approval for adoption by Full Council. 
 

2. Feedback from the Working Group set up to review the comments 
received from the Equality Objectives staff questionnaire be provided to 
the next meeting of the Equality and Diversity Group, also to be fed into 
the Equality Action Plan. 

19



This page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	2 Extension of Six Month Attendance Rule
	3 Equality Objectives 2020-2024
	Equality Objectives Appendix A
	Equality Objectives Appendix B


